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2021
144,243,100 99.99
20,054 0.01
144,263,154
15,715 100.00
2021

Luminis 11
Limited 0%
07/23/2025

0| 2025/ /23 130,231,530 |126,532,955 125,725,519 |87.15

Luminis 11
Limited 0%
07/23/2025/AUD/

0| 2025/ /23 | 24,767,570 | 17,231,149 | 18,517,581 (12.84

2021

2021
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2020 28 2021

(2020 12 ) 155,694,127 16,960 9.99 1,088 10.02 849
2020 162,888,806 17,743 10.09 1,099 10.09 855
161,602,152 17,603 10.05 1,095 10.05 852
157,539,856 17,161 9.85 1,073 9.90 839
10 156,251,407 17,020 9.83 1,071 9.88 837
11 158,540,981 17,270 9.92 1,081 9.97 845
12 155,694,127 16,960 9.99 1,088 10.02 849
2021 152,093,433 16,568 9.93 1,082 9.97 845
148,956,786 16,226 9.90 1,078 9.89 838
144,785,441 15,771 9.84 1,072 9.88 837
144,263,154 15,715 9.90 1,078 9.92 841

0.10

0.20

100 x

10.00 10.00
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(14,023,532.016) (603,955.703) (13,419,576.313)

3,069,022.042 254,532.413 2,814,489.629
(3,069,022.042) (254,532.413) (2,814,489.629)
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DMS 2020 07
2020 12 31
2020 12 31
10 155,685,364 16,958,807
96,588 10,521
1,585,814 172,743
18,483 2,013
157,386,249 17,144,084
155,694,127 16,959,761
14 155,694,127 16,959,761
)
70,302 7,658
AIFM 19,897 2,167
1,585,396 172,697
16,527 1,800
1,692,122 184,323
157,386,249 17,144,084
13,419,576 2,814,490
14 134,025,711 14,599,421 21,668,416 2,360,341
14 9.987 1,088 7.699 839
IE

2021 27
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DMS 2020 07
2020 12 31
2020 12 31
305 33
1,916,962 208,815
1,917,267 208,848
12 358,706 39,074
AIFM 12 101,521 11,059
30,313 3,302
31,588 3,441
522,128 56,875
1,395,139 151,972
1,395,139 151,972

1,395,139 151,972
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2020 12 31
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125,000
2020 12
31 101,521 19,897
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DOT
DOT MFS
UBO DOT
1,000
2020 12 31
(d)
( ) ( ) ( )
21,652,024 135,734,225 157,386,249
(1,692,122) (1,692,122)
21,652,024 134,042,103 155,694,127
2020 12 31
1,082,601
©
FRS102 2A.1
2016 FRS 34.22

IFRS 13 GAAP
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DMS 2020 07
2020 12 31
137,653,630 134,033,340 86.08
28,870,170 21,652,024 13.91
155,685,364 99.99
8,763 0.01

155,694,127 100.00
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2020-07
Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 December 2020
As at
MNotes 31 December 2020
USD
Current Assets
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss 2,10 155,685,364
Cash 3 96,588
Receivable for investments sold 1,585,814
Other receivable 18,483
Total Corrent Assets 157,386,249
Equity
Net assets atiributable to Unitholders 155,694,127
Total Equity 14 155,694,127
Current Liabilities (amounts falling due wﬂih one year)
Dividends payable 70,302
AIFM fees payable 4 19,897
Payable for Trust Units repurchased 1,585,396
Other payable 4 16,527
Total Current Liabilities 1,692,122
Total Equity and Current Liabilities 157,386,249
USD Unit Class AUD Unit Class
Number of Units in Tssue T 13,419,576 2,814,490
Net Asset Valoe per Unit Class 14 134,025,711 21,668,416
Net Asset Value per Unit 14 9.987 7.699
Signed on behalf of Waystone Management Company (IE) Limited
- dp— Casimliaui, 8 Jownall
Date: 27 May 2021

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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MNotes
Income
Interest income
et gain on financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss 2

Total Net Income

Expenses

Digtribution fees 5
ATFM fees 512
Organisational expenses 5
Onher expenses 9
Total Operating Expenses

Net Operating Profit before Tax

Withholding Tax 2
Net Operating Profit

Total Comprehensive Profit

For the period ended
31 December 2020
UsD

305

1,916,962

1,917,267

358,706
101,521
30,313
31,588

522,128

1,395,139

1,395,139

1,395,139

Income and expenses arose salely from continuing operations.

There are no récognised gains and losses other than those shown in the Staternent of Compreheénsive

Income,

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

9
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2020-07

Statement of Changes in Equity
For the period ended 31 December 2020

For the period ended

31 December 2020

UsD

Opening Net Assets attributable to Unitholders =

Proceeds of Units issued 162,211,052

Payment for Units redeemed (7.912,064)
Net increase in Net Assets attributable to

Unitholders from operations 1,395,139

Closing Net Assets attributable to Unitholders 155,694,127

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

10
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Notes to the Audited Financial Sintements
For the period ended 31 December 2020

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust (the “Trust™) was constituted as an Irish umbrella Unit Trost organized
by the Manager and the Trustee under the Unit Trusts Act 1990 (the “Act™) on 3 June 2020, with the
Registered Office at 3rd Floor, 76 Lower Baggot Street, Dublin 2, Ircland. The Trust is authorised by
the Central Bank of Ireland (the “‘Central Bank™) as a Unit Trust pursuant to the Act,

The Trust is an umbrella fund which may comprise different Funds, each with one or more Classes of
Units. Each Fund may be constituted as &n open-ended fund, an open-ended fund with limited
liquidity or a closed-cnded fund.

As at 31 December 2020, the Trust had one sub-fund in existence: DMS Target Maturity Setting
Fund 202007 (the *Fund"). The Fund commenced its operations on 28 July 2020,

The Fund offers two Unil Classes, the USD Unil Class and the AUD Unil Class. The Funclional
Currency of the Fund is United States Dollar (“USD™).

The Fund is & Unit Trast with a trust term of approximately five years. The trust term refers to the
period from the commencement of operation on 28 July 2020 to Fund Maturity Date. The Maturity
Date is 25 July 2025 (“Maturity Date™) or such other date as may be determined by the Manager and
notified to Unitholders, being the date on which the term of the Fund expires and all remaining Units
are redeemed.

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies and estimation techniques adopted by the Fund are as follows:
Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Fund have been prepared in compliance with Financial Reporting
Standard 102: “The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the United Kingdom and Republic of

Ireland” (“FRS 102™), accounting standards gencrally accepted in Ircland and Irish statute
comprising the Unit Trust Act, 1990,

The format and certain wording of the financial statements have been adapted from those contained
in FRS 102 so that, in the opinicn of the Alternative [nvestment Fund Manager (the “AIFM™), they
more appropriately reflect the nature of the Fund's business as an investment fund.

The Fund has availed of the exemption available to certain open-ended investment funds under FRS
102 not to prepare a cash fow statement,

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

The financial statements represent the period from 3 June 2020 (date of incorporation) to 31
December 2020,

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with FRS 102 requires the use of estimates and
assumptions that affect the amounis reporied in the financial statements and accompanying notes.
The AIFM believes that the estimates ulilised in fnencial statements are reasonable and prudent.
Actual results could differ from these estimates. Please refer to Note 10 €) for Fair Valoe Estimation
disclosures.
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Notes to the Audited Financial Statements (Continued)
For the period ended 31 December 2020

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investment policy

In order to achieve its investment objective, the Fund will invest all of the proceeds from the issue of
Units (after deducting therefrom the costs and expenses in coanection with the establishmest of the
Fund and the offering of Units and a reserve for other charges and expenses payable out of the assets
of the Fund) in certain performance-linked notes (the *“Notes”™) to be issued by Luminis I Limited,
special purpose vehicle domiciled in the Cayman Islands (the “Notes Issuer”). Special purpose
vehicles are companies whose purpose is to conduct business such as the issuance of bonds, and are
generally used in the securitization of assets and the issuance of structured notes.

The Notes will provide the Fund and each Unit Class with the following exposures:

l. Exposure to a portfolio of fixed income instruments (the “GS Bonds™) issued by The
Goldman Sachs Group, Inc (the “GS Bonds Issuer'™) and denominated in the currency of the
relevant Class of Units {the “Fixed Portion™); and

2. Exposure to a synthetic portfolio which provides a return which is linked to the performance
of a basket of certain investment funds (the *“Active Portion™ or the “Strategy™).

The Strategy consists of four investment funds (the "Underlying Funds®) having individual strategies
and cash minus necessary costs to compose 2 basket, and aims for stable excess retumns in various
environments. The weightings to be allocated to each Underlying Fund will be determined upon
launch in order to ensure that the risk level is equally distributed between the Underlying Funds (the
“Underlying Basket™).

Accounting for Investments
[nvestment transactions arc recorded on & trade date basis. Realised gains and losses on sales of
investments are calculated on a “first in - first oul™ (“FIFO”) basis.

Valuation of Investments

On initial application of FRS 102, in accounting for its financial instruments a reporting enotity is
required to apply either a) the full requirements of FRS 102 relating to Basic Financial Instruments
and Other Financial Instruments, b) the recognition and measurement provisions of IAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and only the disclosure requirements of FRS 102 relating to Basic
Financial Instruments and Other Finanecial Instruments, or ¢) the recognition and measurement
provisions of International Financial Reporting Standard (“IFRS™) 9 Financial Instruments and only
the disclosure requirements of FRS 102 relating to Basic Financial Instruments and Other Financial
Instruments. The Fund has chosen to implement b) the recognilion and measurement provigion of
IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and only the disclosure requirements of FRS 102 relating
to Basic Financial Instruments and Other Financial Instruments.

In accordance with FRS 102 the Fund has classified all of its investmenis as financial assets or
liahilities designated at fair value through profit or loss. Investments are initially recognised at the
fair value of the consideration given, with transaction costs for such instruments being recognised
directly in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. Investments are subsequently remeasured at fair
value at the period end. Purchases and sales of investments are recognised on trade date — the date on
which the Fund commits to purchase or sell the asset.
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Notes to the Audited Financial Siatements (Continued)
For the period ended 31 December 2020

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Valuation of Investments (Continued)

Foreign exchange hedging may be utilized for the benefit of a particular Hedged Class and its cost
and related liabilities and/or benefits shall be for the sccount of such Class only. Accordingly, any
appreciation or depreciation of the Net Asset Value of a Fund resulting from expenses, income, gains
and losses that are attributable to any foreign exchange hedging in respect of a Hedged Class shall be
attributable solely to the Hedged Class to which it relates.

The value of the assets of each Fund shall be determined in respect of each Valuation Date as
follows:

{a)  securities, including debt and equity securities, which are quoted, listed or traded om or
under the rules of any market will be valued at the closing bid price as at each Valuation
Point. If the security is nommally quoted, listed or traded on or under the rules of more
than one market, the relevant market will be that which Waystone Management Company
(IE) Limited (the “Manager™) determine provides the fairest criterion of value for the
security. If prices for a security quoted, listed or traded on the relevant market are not
available at the relevant time or are unrepresentative in the opinion of the Manager such
security will be valued at such value as will be estimated with care and good faith as the
praobable realisation value of such security by the Manager;

(h) any security, including debt and equity securities, which is not nommally quoted, listed or
traded on or under the rules of a market or in respect of which the Manager determines
that the closing bid price as set out abowe is not representative of its fair market value, will
be valued at its probable realisation value as determined with care and in good faith by the
Manager;

{c)  derivative instruments including swaps, interest rate futures contracts and other financial
futures contracts which are traded on a8 market will be valued at the settlement price as
determined by the relevant market at the close of business on that market oa the Valuation
Date, provided that where it is not the practice of the relevant market to quote a settlement
price, or if a settlement price is not available for eny reason, such instruments will be
valued at their probable realisation value estimated with care and good faith by the
Manager;

{d)  credit defanlt swap instruments which are not dealt on a market will be valued on each
Valuation Date at the evaluated mean by reference to freely available market quotations
supplied by an independent pricing agent or at the price obtained from the counterparty or
a party appointed by the Manager. All other derivative instruments which are not dealt on
& market will be valued on each Valuation Date at the bid price by reference to freely
available market quotations supplied by an independent pricing agent or at the price
obtained from the counterparty or & party appointed by the Manager;

{€)  Units in collective investment schemes will be valued on the basis of the latest published
Net Asset Value of such Units. If such prices are unavailable, the Units will be valued at
their probable realisation value estimated with care and good faith by the Manager;

{f)  assets demominated in a currency other than in the Functional Currency of the relevant
Fund shall be converted into the Functional Currency at the rate (whether official or
otherwise) which the Manager deems appropriate in the circumstances;
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Notes to the Audited Financial Siatements (Continued)
For the period ended 31 December 2020

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Valuation of Investments (Continued)
{g) cash deposits and similar assets will be valued at their face value together with accrued
interest unless in the opinion of the Manager any adjustment should be made to reflect the
fair value thereof; and

{h)  realised gains and losses on financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss are calculated based on FIFO book cost. The associated foreign exchange
movements between the date of the purchase and the date of the sale of financial assets
are incleded in net gain on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Net gain on financial assets at fair value throngh profit or loss

31 December 2020

USD
Realised gain on investments and foreign exchange 83,522
Realised loss on investments and foreign exchange (34,942)
Total net realised gain 48,580
Increase in unrealised appreciation on investments 1,888,401
Decrease in unrealised depreciation on investmenis (20,019
Total met increase in unrealised
appreciation/{depreciation) 1.868.382
Net gain on financial assets at fair value through
profit or loas 1,916,962
Foreign Exchange Translation
Functional and Presentation Currency

The functional and presentational currency of the Fund is US Dollar (“USD™}. This is considered to
be the currency of the primary economic environment of the Fund.

Tramsactions and Balances

Asscts and liabilitics denominated in currencies other than the functional currency of the Fund are
translated into the functional currency at the exchange rates ruling at the period end date
Transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of the Fund are translated into the
functional currency at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Gains and losses on
foreign exchange transactions are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in
determining the result for the pericd. Proceeds from issuance and amounts paid on repurchase of
Units are translated at the rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Notes to the Audited Financial Siatements (Continued)
For the period ended 31 December 2020

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Transaction costs

Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised at fair
value. Transaction costs are expensed in the Statement of Comprebensive Income. Gains and losses
arising from changes in the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss category are presented in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the
financial period in which they arise.

Expenses
Expenses are recognised on the acerual basis,

Net Asset Valoe Per Unit
The Net Asset Value per Unit is caleulated by dividing the Total Met Assets of the Fund by the
number of Units in issue. All Units are issued and repurchased at this price.

The Units can be put back into the Fund at any time for cash equal to a proportional share of the
Fund's Net Asset Value, The Unit is carried at the repurchase amount which is payable at the period
end date if the Unitholder exercised the right to put the Unit back in the Pund.

Taxation

Under current law and practice, the Fund qualifics &3 an investment undertaking as defined in Scction
7398 of the Taxes Consolidation Act, 1997, as amended, The Fund is not chargeable (o Irish tax on
its income or capital gains. However, [rish tax can arise on the happening of a “chargeable event”. A
chargeable event includes any distribution payments o Unitholders or any encashment, repurchase,
redemption, transfer or cancellation of shares and any deemed disposal of Units for Irish tax purposes
arising as a result of holding Units in the Fund for a period of eight years or more.

No taox will arise in respect of chargeable events in respect of a Unitholder who:

(i) 15 an Exempt Irish Investor (as defined in Section 739D of the Taxes Consolidation Act,
1997, as amended) who has provided the Fund with the necessary sipned statutory
declarations; or

(ii) is neither Irish resident nor ordinarily resident in Ireland for tax purposes at the time of the
chargeable event, provided, in each case, that the necessary signed statutory declaration in
accordance with Schedule 2B of the Taxes Consolidation Act, 1997, as amended is held by
the Fund.

Capital gains and interest received by the Fund may be subject to non-recoverable withholding tax in
the countrics of crigin.

3. CASH AND BANK OVERDRAFT

Cash comprises cwrent deposits with banks. Cash equivalemts are short-term highly liguid
investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash, are subject 1o an insignificant risk
of changes in value, and are held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments rather than
of investment or other purposes.

31 December 2020
Held by: uUsD
BBV A Madrid 96,588

96,538
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Notes to the Audited Financial Siatements (Continued)
For the period ended 31 December 2020

4. FEES PAYABLE

31 December 2020

UsD

AIFM fees (MNote 12) 19,897
Printing expenses 15,201
Service expenses 1,326
36,424

5. FEES

The fees and charges payable to the Manager and the Investment Manager, which will apply to each
Fund or to different Classes of Unit for each Fund, will be specified in the relevant Supplement.

Management and Investment Management Fees

In respect of its provision of management services to the Fund, the Manager will receive a
management fes (the “Management Fee™) on a sliding scale at 3 maximum rate of 0,15% per anmm
of the Net Asset Value of the Fund. The Management Fee is subject to an annual minimum fee of
USD 125,000 per annum per Fund. The Management Fee will accrue at each Valuation Point and is
paid monthly in arrears together with any reasonable and documented out of pocket expenses
incurred by the Manager in the performance of its duties that are not covered by the Management
Fee. The Manager is responsible for paying the fees and expenses of the Investment Manager, the
Administrator, the Trustee and the Auditors (for the annual audit only). For the period ended 31
December 2020, the Manager carned a fee of USD 101,521 of which USD 19,897 was outstanding at
period end.

Dristribution Fees

Distribution fees of 0.53% are payable to the Distribulors on a per Unit basis. For the period ended
31 December 2020, the Distribution fee incurred was USD 358,706, There was no outstanding
Distribution fee at period end.

Administrator and Trustee Fees

The Administrator and Trustee shall be entitled to receive fees calculated as & percentage of the Net
Asset Value of each Fund for the provision of administration and trustee services respectively. The

feea of the Administrator and the Trustee shall be discharged out of the Management Fee received by
the Manager or out of the assets of the relevant Fund as may be specified in the relevant Supplement.

The fees and the expenses of the Administrator and Trustee are payable monthly in arrears, and are
calculated at a rate of 0.04% for the first USD 1 billion of the aggregate Net Asset Value of the Sub-
Funds of the Trust, 0.035% on the next USD 1.5 billion and 0.03% sbove USD 2.5 billion. The
Administrator and Trustee will also be entitled to receive additional fees from the Fund to cover any
reasonable and documented out-of-pocket expenses.

Agent Secarities Company fees

The Agent Securities Company in Japan is entitled to an annual fise rate of 0.01% of the Net Assets
of the Fund. This fee is payable monthly in arrears and is accrued on a daily basis. Any reasonable
disbursements and out-of-pocket expenses incurred by the Agent Securities Company for client
services carried out on behalf of the Fund will be bome by the Fund.
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Notes to the Audited Financial Siatements (Continued)
For the period ended 31 December 2020

5. FEES (Continued)

Aupditors’ Remun eration

‘The statutory audit fee (including cut-of-pocket expenses incurred by the auditors in connection with
their audit work), which is paid by the Manager on behalf of the Fund, for the year amountad to USD
11,502 for the financial period. There were oo other foes paid to the auditors otber than the statutory
audit fee,

Establishment and Organisational Expenses

The establishment and organisational expenses (including expenses relating to the drafting of the
Prospectus, the negotiation and preparation of the material contracts, the printing of the Prospectus
and the related marketing material, and the fees and expenses of its professional advisers) incurred
connected with the initial offering of Units in respect of the Fund are not expected to exceed Euro
25,000. The financial stalement Net Asset Value per Unit is calculated with organisational expenses
being expensed to the Statement of Comprehensive Income, which totaled USD 30,313, For the
purpose of caleulating the Net Asset Value per Unit for Unithholder dealing, organisational expenses
are being amortised over the first three financial years of the lifetime of the Fund. USD 26,051 was
amortised in the Unitholders calculation for the period ended 31 December 2020,

6. SOFT COMMISSION ARRANGEMENTS

There were no soft commission arangements entered into during the period ended 31 December
2020,

7. UNITS ISSUED AND REFURCHASED DURING THE FERIOD
The following Unit Classes were available for subseription during the Initial Offer Period:

Class Currency Initial Minimum Minimum Minimum
Denomination | Offer Initial Subsequent Redemption
Price Subscription | Subscription Amopunt
per Unit /Minimum Holding
"'ESBI Unit | yyep USD 10.00 | USD 150,000 N/A 1 Unit
amun Unit | yup AUD 10.00 | AUD 200,000 N/A 1 Unit

Investors must subscribe info a Class in the currency in which that Class is denominated. Repurchase
payments are also made in the currency in which the relevant Class is denominated.

Following the end of the Initial Offer Period, it is not anticipated that further subscriptions into the
Fund will be sccepted, save that the Directors may, in their sole discretion, decide to declare a
Subscription Day on any Business Day. In such circumstances, Units in the Fund will be available for
subscription at the Net Asset Value per Unit (less any duties and charges) on the relevant
Subscription Day and the Directors will confirm details of the relevant Subscription Cut-Off Time
and date by which settlement should be made in respect of any such subscription.
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Notes to the Audited Financial Siatements (Continued)
For the period ended 31 December 2020

7. UNITS ISSUED AND REPURCHASED DURING THE PERIOD (Continued)

A Unitholder may submit a redemption request, in accordance with the requirements in respect of
any Redemption Day, by submitting a redemption request in advence of the relevant Redemption
Cut-0Off Time. Units will be redeemed at the Net Asset Value per Unit of the relevant Unit Class on
the relevant Redemption Day. The aggregate redemption proceads pavable to a Unitholder will be
rounded down to the nearesi whole USD 001, in the case of the USD Unil Class and AUD 0.01, in
the case of the AUD Unit Class. The benefit of any such rounding will be retained for the account of
the Fund. For the purpeses of calculating the redemption price of a Unit, the Trustee and/or the
Manager may deduct from the Net Asset Value per Unit an amount which itthey consider(s) to be an
appropriate allowance to reflect fiscal and sale charges which would be incurred for the account of
the Fund in realising assets or closing out positions to provide funds to meet redemption requests on
a particular Redemption Day,

Tt is generally expected that redemption proceeds will be circulated 1o Unitholders within 5 Business
Days of the relevant Redemption Day.

All remaining Units in the Fund will be compulscrily repurchased on the Fund Maturity Date and the
proceeds of repurchase will be seot to Unithelders within 5 Business Days of redemption.

31 December 2020
Number of Units oulsianding at beginning of period -
Number of Units issued 17,092,554
Number of Units repurchased B58.488
Number of Units outstanding at end of period 16,234,066

§. DISTRIBUTION POLICY

The distribution policy for the Funds will be determined by the Manager from time to time and set
out in the relevant Supplement.

The Fund's distribution policy is not to make distributions to Unitholders but instead to reinvest all
the Fund's net income and realised capital gains. Accordingly, an investment in the Fund may not be
suitable for investors seeking current returns.

Any dividend paid on a Unit of a Fund that has not been claimed within six years of its declaration
will be forfeited and will be paid for the benefit of the Fund, No interest will be paid on any dividend.

During the period ended 31 December 2020 there were oo distributions declared.
9. OTHER EXFENSES

31 December 2020

USD

Printing expenses 15,201
Service expenses 6,768
Miscellaneous expenses 9,619

31,588

18

140/249



EDINETOOOO
OO000oOO00o0DO000Do00D00o0DO000DO0o0no(Ess?72)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Notes to the Audited Financial Siatements (Continued)
For the period ended 31 December 2020

10, FINANCIAL RISKS

The Fund's investment activities expose them to the various types of risks which are associated with
the financial instruments and markets in which they invest. The Trust's risk management policies
seek to minimise the potential adverse effiects of these risks on each Fund's financial performance in
order to satisfy the investment objectives of the Fund.

There is no guarantee that in any time period the Fund's investment objective will be successful.
[nvestors should be aware that the value of Units may fall as well as rise. In particular, an investment
in the Fund is subject to imvestment risk, inchnding the possible loss of the entire principal amount
that an investor may invest. The value of Units may risc or fall, as the capital value of the securitics
in which the Fund invests may fluctuate. The investment income of & Fund is based on the income
earnad on the securities it holds, less expenses incurred. Therefore, a Fund's investment income may
be expected to fluctuate in response to changes in such expenses or income,

The main risks arising from the Fund's financial instruments are market risk (including price risk,
foreign currency risk and imterest rate risk), liquidity risk and credit risk.

{a) Market Risk

Moarket risk arises mainly from upcertainty about future prices of financial instruments held,
specifically from other price movements. It represents the potential loss a Fund may suffer through
holding market positions in the face of adverse price movements.

The Fund is subject to market price risk. The value of the Fund's investments will go up and down as
prices of the financial instruments floctuate.

The Fund’s financial instruments are susceptible to market price risk from uncertainty about future
prices of financial instruments. All securities in which the Fund invests present a risk of loss of
capital, The Fund manages price risk by investing in a diversified portfolio of assets and by using
various investment siralegies.

An increase of 10% in fair value due to changes in valuation assumptions of financial assels as at the
reporting date would have increased the net assets atfributable to the Fund and profit for the period
by USD 15,727,118, A decrease of 10% would have had an equal and opposite impact,

Country % of [nvestments Industry % of [nvestments
Cayman Islands 100.00 Financial 100.00
(l) Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is defined as the rizk that the Fund may not be able to settle or meet its obligations on
time or at a reascnable price.

The AIFM will maintain an adequate and documented liquidity meanagement policy in accordance
with the requirements of Allernative Investment Fund Managers Directive (the “AIFMD™). The
AIFM's liquidity management policy will include such procedures as are necessary to enable the
AIFM to assess and monitor the liquidity risk to which the Fund and Trust are or may be exposed
(including conducting regular stress tests under normal and exceptional liquidity conditions) and to
ensure that the liquidity profile of the investments of the Fund comply with the Trust's underlying
The Trust's policy to manage liquidity is to have sufficient liquidity in the Fund to mecet its liabilitics
as and when they fall due, under both normal and stressed conditions without incurring undue losses
or risking damage.
All liabilities are payable within three months or less.
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Notes to the Audited Financial Siatements (Continued)
For the period ended 31 December 2020

10. FINANCIAL RISKS (Continued)

{c) Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that the counterparty to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an
obligation or commitment that it has entered into with the Trust. The Investment Manager assesses
and measures the risk of each investment on its merits and tailors its credit policy and monitoring
accordingly on a regular basis.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of each financial asset at
the reporting date,

Brown Brothers Harriman Trastee Services (Ireland) Limited act as Trustee to the Trust. Cash held
via accounts opened on the books of Brown Brothers Harriman & Co. (“BBH™) are obligations of
BBH. Accordingly, while BBH is responsible for exercising reasonable care in the administration of
such agency cash accounts where it has appointed the agent (L.e. in the case of cash correspondent
banks and sub—custodians), it is not linble for their repayment in the event that the agent, by reason of
its bankruptcy, insolvency or otherwise, fails to make repayment. Brown Brothers Harriman & Co.
has & long term credit rating of A+ as issued by Fitch.

The inability (or perceived inability) of issuers to make timely payments of interest and principal
may make the values of securities approximate only 1o the values placed on such securities. In the
ahsence of a liquid trading market for certain securities it may not be possible to establish the fair
value of such securities.

The Notes Issuer is a special purpose company which does not have substantial assets of its own to
support its cbligations under the Notes. Amounts due to the Fund will only be paid with funds paid to
the Motes Issuer under any charged agreement(s) and any charged assets. Therefore, the Fund
assumes foll credit risk of the Notes [ssuer, any counterparty and the obligor(s) of any charged assets.

The Notes will provide the Fund and each Unit Class with the exposure to a portfolio of fixed income
instruments (the “GS Bonds™) issued by The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc (the “GS Bonds Issuer™)
with a long term credit rating of A as issued by Fitch.

As at 31 December 2020 issuer and counterparty for performance-linked notes held by the Fund is
Luminis IT Limited (“the Notes Issuer'™). While MaplesFS Limited ("MFS") is the registered owner of
the Notes Issuer's ordinary shares, these are held subject to a Declaration of Trust ("DOT™). Under
the DOT, MFS holds the Notes Issuer’s shares on trust for the benefit of a "Qualified Charity" {as
defined in the DOT) which is legally the ultimate beneficial owner ("UBO") of the trust assels which
comprises solely the shares or the economic value of the shares once the Notes Issuer is formally
liquidated. Typically, the nominal value of these trust assets would be less than 15$1,000. There arc
no bearer shares in the legal structure.

The Fund's cash iz swept on a nightly basis to pre-approved financial institutions, As at 3] December
2020, the institutions where the Fund’s cash was held and their respective credit ratings, af that date,
are listed below:

Institution Short Term Credit Indicator
Banco Bilboa Vizcaya Argentaria, Madrid Lower Medium Grade
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Notes to the Audited Financial Siatements (Continued)
For the period ended 31 December 2020

10. FINANCIAL RISKS (Continued)

(d) Foreign Currency Risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of the Fund's investments will
fluctuate &5 a result of changes in foreign currency exchange rates. Certain of the Fund's assels,
lisbilities, income and expenses are denominated in currencies other than its functional currency. As
a result, movement in exchange rates may affect the value of those items. The [nvestment Manager
maonitors this risk on an ongoing basis.

The tables below set out the carrying amount of financial instruments in cach currency:

AUD Balances USD Balances Total Balances

(UsD) (USD) (USD)

Financial Assets 21,652,024 135,734,225 157,386,249
Financial Liabilities - (1,692,122} (1,692,122)
21,652,024 134,042,103 155,604,127

As at 31 December 2020, had the AUD strengthened or weakened by 5% against USD, with all other
variables held congtant, this would have an approximate effect of USD 1,082,601 on the Siatement of
Comprehensive Income of the Fund.

The Fund has classified fair value measurements using a fair value hicrarchy that reflects the
significance of the inputs used in making the measurements.

(¢) Fair Value Estimation

FES 102 Section 2A.1 on “Fair Value Disclosure™ requires disclosure relating to the fair value
hierarchy in which fair value measurements are categorised for assets and lishilities. The disclosures
are based on a three-level fair valve hierarchy for the inputs used in valuation techniques to measure
fair value. In March 2016 amendments were made to paragraph 34.22 of this FRS, revising the
disclosure requirements for financial institutions to more closely align the disclosure requirements
with those in [FRS 13 Fair Value Measurement and historical practice with those in Irish GAAP.

Financial assets and liabilities are measured in the Statement of Financial Position al fair value. The
fair value measurements are categorised within a three-level hierarchy. The valuation hierarchy is
based upon the relative observability and reliability of inputs to the valuation of each of the Fund's
investments. The inputs or methodology used for valuing securities are not necessarily an indication
of the risk associated with investing in those securities. The three levels are defined as follows:

Lewvel 1 — The unadjusted quoted price in an active market for identical assets or liabilities that the
Fund can access at the measurernent date,

The types of assets and liabilities categorised in Level 1 geperally include actively traded domestic
and certain foreign equity securities, certain 1.5, government obligations, derivatives actively traded
on a national securities exchange (such as some firtures and options), shares of open-end mutual
funds (even if their investments are valued using Level 2 or Level 3 inputs).
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Notes to the Audited Financial Siatements (Continued)
For the period ended 31 December 2020

10. FINANCIAL RISKS (Continued)

(e) Fair Value Estimation {Continued)
Level 2 — Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable (i.e. developed
using market data) for the asset or Liability, either directly or indirectly.

These include investment-grade corporate bonds and certain non-U.S. sovereign obligations, listed
equities, mumual funds, equity-linked notes and over the counter derivatives, As level 2 investments
include positions that are not traded in active markets and/or are subject to transfer restrictions,
valuations may be adjusted to reflect illiquidity and/or non-transferability, which arc generally bascd
on available market information

Level 3 — Inputs are unobservable (Le. for which market data is unavailable) for the asset or liability.

The types of assets and liabilities categorised in Level 3 generally include, but are not limited to,
certain debt securitics (such as asset-backed, mortgage-backed, loans and sovercign debt) and
derivatives even though they are valeed using broker quotes; certain debt securitics and derivatives
adjusted by a specified discount for liquidity or other considerations; certain sovercign debt secarities
valued using comparable securitics issued by the sovercign adjusted by a specified spread; securitics
whaose trading has been suspended or that have been de-listed from their current primary trading
exchange valued at the most recent available market or quoted price; securities in default or
bankruptcy proceedings for which there is no current market quotation valued at the most recent
“ml:blcmmintwqumdmm potential litigation recoverics and imterests related fo bankruptcy
third-party investment funds where valuations are provided by fund sponsors and which
are adjusted for liquidity considerations as well as the timing of the receipt of information and certain
securities that are valued using a price from a comparable security related to the same issuer.
The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement is categorised is
determined on the basis of the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in
its entirety. The significance of an input is assessed against the fair value measurement in its entirety.

If a fair value measuyrement uses ohservable inputs that require significanl adjustment based on
unobservable inputs, this may be deemed to fall within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. Assessing

the significance of a particular input to the fair value measurement in its entirety requires judgement,
considering factors specific to the assel or liability.

The determination of what constitutes “observable” requires significant judgement by the [nvestment
Manager. The Investment Manager considers observable data to be that market data that is readily
available, regularly distributed or updated, reliable and verifiable, not proprietary, and provided by
independent sources thai are actively involved in the relevant market.

The following tables provide an analysis of the fair value hierarchy of the Fund's financial assets,
measured al fair value at 31 December 2020.

31 December 2020 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets USD USD USD USD
Performance-linked notes . . 155685364 155685364
Total X -~ 155685364 155685364

Transfers into and out of levels are recognised at the end of the reporting period. There were no
material transfers into or out of Level 3 during the financial period ended 31 December 2020.

22

1447249



EDINETOOOO
OO000oOO00o0DO000Do00D00o0DO000DO0o0no(Ess?72)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Notes to the Audited Financial Siatements (Continued)
For the period ended 31 December 2020

11. EXCHANGE RATES

The following exchange rates have been used to translate assets and liabilities in currencies other
than USD at period end:

As at
31 December 2020
AUD 1.3012

12. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Directors of the Manager are not aware of any transactions with related persons during the
period ended 31 December 2020, other than those disclosed in these financial statements. The AIFM,
Waystone Management Company (IE) Limited, the Tovestment Manager, Waystone Assct
Management ([E) Limited, the Agent Securities Company in Goldman Sachs Japan Co., Ltd are
regarded as related parties of the Fund under FRS 102 “Related Party Disclosures™.

Fees incurred with related parties during the pericd are disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income. Amounts payable to related parties at the period end are disclosed in Note 4.

13. STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN PORTFOLIO POSITIONS

The statement of changes in portfolio positions for the period has not been presented though the
details may be obtained free of charge from Waystone Management Company (IE) Limited.

14. NET ASSET VALUE AND NET ASSET VALUE PER UNIT

The Net Asset Value per redeemable participating unit is caleulated by dividing the total net assets
(as calculated for pricing purposes) of the Fund by the number of redeemable participating Units in
issue. The Net Asset Value per redeemsble participating unit reported in the Statement of Financial
Position is that used for financial statement purposes.

For the purposes of the financial statements, all organisational expenses, including fees paid to the
professional advisors of the Fund, are expensed in the year they arc incurmed in accordance with FRS
102. Organisational expenses were charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income. For the
purpose of calculating the Net Asset Value per Unit for Unitholder dealing, USD 26,051 was
amortised for the year ended 31 December 2020,

As at

31 December 2020

Net Asset Value for financial statement purposes 155,604,127
Units outstanding 16,234,066
Net Asset Value per Unit for financial statement purposes 9.591
Add: Cumulative additicnal organisational expenses written off 26,051
Met Asset Value for Unitholder dealing purposes 155 178
Units cutstanding 16,234,066

Wet Asset Value per Unit for Unitholder dealing purposes 9.592
23
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Notes to the Audited Financial Statements {Continued)
For the period ended 31 December 2020

15 SIGNIFICANT EVENTS DURING THE PERIOD
The DMS Target Matunty Setting Fund 2020-07 commenced its operations on 28 July 2020,

Beginning in January 2020, global financial marketz have experienced and may continue to
expenence significant volatility rezulting from the spresd of a novel coronasirus known as COVID-
19, The outbreak of COVID-19 has resulted in travel and boarder restrictions, quarantines, supply
chain dismptions, lower consumer demand amnd general market uncertainty. The effects of COVID-19
have and may contimue (o adversely affect the global economy, the economies of cenan nations and
individual issuers, all of which may negatively impact the Fund's performance.

16. SIGNIFICANT EVENTS SINCE THE PERICD END

The DMS Target Matunty Setting Fund 2103 commenced its operations on 30 March 2021

DMS Investment Management Services (Europe) Limited changed s name to Waystone
Mamagement Company (IE) Limited, effective | March 2021

DMS Market Access Limited also changed its name to Waystone Asset Management (1E) Limated,
effective 1 March 2021.

There were no other significant events occwrring afler 31 December 2020 requiring financial
statement disclosure.

17. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved by the Directors of the Manager on 27 May 2021,

4

146/249



EDINETOOOO
OO000oOO00o0DO000Do00D00o0DO000DO0o0no(Ess?72)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust

DMVS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2020-07
Statement of Investments

As at 31 December 2020

Number of Fair Value B of Met
Shares Security Description LUSD Assets

Performance-linked notes
Cuyman Isdands

137,653,630 Lueminis [T Limited 134,033,340 36,08
28870170 Luminis 1T Limited 21,652,024 13.91
Total Investments 155,685 364 99,99
Other assets and hisbilities 8.763 0.01
Med Assets attributable to Unitholders 155,604,127 1) (M)

7
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2021
144,899,627 15,783,916
636,472 69,331
144,263,154 15,714,585
12,725,466.983
2,420,641.746
9.90 1,078
9.92 841
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2021
3,790,000 24
3,790,000

2016 30 2021 30
2016 31 80,000
2016 10 27 408,120
2016 11 11 511,880
2017 12 22 200,000
2019 11 800,000
2020 24 700,000
2,700,000
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MIFID

2017 DMS

Lambay Capital Limited
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Waystone Governance Ltd

AIFMD  UCITS

FATCA CRS

Waystone Governance Ltd
DMS

DMS Governance Europe Ltd

IE
AIFM UcITS
AIFMD
IE 16
IT
2021
168
UCITS 21 2,367,164,795
UCITS 1 109,374,003
AlFs 64 10,293,500, 903
AlFs 52 3,260,973,790
AlFs 2 16,403,034
AlFs 28 4,072,705,336
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131

2021 30
131.99
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IE
2020 12 31
2020 12 31 2019 12 31

- - 651 86
10 11 312,516 41,249 - -
11 6,755,105 891,606 7,012,233 925,545
12 5,654,703 746,364 4,071,239 537,363
12,409,808 1,637,971 11,083,472 1,462,907
12,722,324 1,679,220 11,084,123 1,462,993
14 4,490,000 592,635 3,790,000 500,242
14 3,991,034 526,777 3,413,576 450,558
8,481,034 1,119,412 7,203,576 950,800
13 4,241,290 559,808 3,880,547 512,193
12,722,324 1,679,220 11,084,123 1,462,993

2021 15 2021 15
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IE
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
21,285,238 2,809,439 19,503,124 2,574,217
(7,108,226) (938,215) (6,770,077) (893,582)
14,177,012 1,871,224 12,733,047 1,680,635
(13,724,520) (1,811,499) (9,055,914) (1,195,290)
452,492 59,724 3,677,133 485,345
(21,978) (2,901) (16,689) (2,203)
430,514 56,824 3,660,444 483,142
146,944 19,395 (464,016) (61,245)
577,458 76,219 3,196,428 421,897
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
577,458 76,219 3,196,428 421,897
577,458 76,219 3,196,428 421,897
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IE
2020 12 31
2020 3,790,000 500,242 3,413,576 450,558 7,203,576 950,800
- - 577,458 76,219 577,458 76,219
700,000 92,393 - - 700,000 92,393
2020 12 31 4,490,000 592,635 3,991,034 526,777 8,481,034 1119412
2019 2,990,000 394,650 217,148 28,661 3,207,148 423,311

- - 3,196,428 421,897 3,196,428 421,897

800,000 105,592 - - 800,000 105,592

2019 12 31 3,790,000 500,242 3413576 450,558 7,203,576 950,800
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2020 12 31 2019 12 31
577,458 76,219 3,196,428 421,897
21,978 2,901 16,689 2,203
(146,944) (19,395) 464,016 61,245
9,681 1,278 3,857 509
462,173 61,002 3,680,990 485,854
398,238 52,563 (2,751,216) (363,133)
702,807 92,763 (409,912) (54,104)

1,563,218 206,329 519,862 68,617
(255,844) (33,769) (179,512) (23,694)

1,307,374 172,560 340,350 44,923
(401,932) (53,051) - -
(401,932) (53,051) - -
(21,978) (2,901) (16,689) (2,203)
700,000 92,393 800,000 105,592
678,022 89,492 783,311 103,389

1,583,464 209,001 1,123,661 148,312

4,071,239 537,363 2,947,578 389,051

5,654,703 746,364 4,071,239 537,363
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IE
2020 12 31
1
IE
76
DMS
2
IFRS
21
2014
22
€
23

0]

(i)

30 12
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(iii) IFRS

IFRS IFRS 2020

FVOCI
FVTPL

FVOCI FVTPL
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FVTPL
FVTPL
FVTPL
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12
365
ECL
12 ECL 12
ECL
ECL
ECL
ECL
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ECL

ECL

ECL )

ECL

ECL

12
ECL

EAD
100
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ECL

120

24

25

26

AIFM UCITS

( NAV )
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27

28

29

IFRS 15

210

125

IFRS 15

(125

)
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21

212

213
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214

IFRS

215 2020

IFRS
IAS
IFRS

IAS
IAS 39 IFRS

IFRS 16 COVID-19

216

IFRS 17

IFRS 17 IFRS 17 IFRS
IAS 16
IAS 37
IFRS IFRS

IFRS 16 IAS 41

1AS

IASB 11
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2020 12 31 2019 12 31
21,285,238 19,503,124
21,285,238 19,503,124

UCITS

2020 12 31 2019 12 31
18,090,386 17,536,659
3,093,626 1,966,465

101,226
21,285,238 19,503,124
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
1,056,450 1,042,314
344,835 329,765
5,706,941 5,397,998

7,108,226 6,770,077
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2020 12 31 2019 12 31
63,135 46,655
494,140 582,090
4,118,115 3,845,398
IE
5,021,460 3,098,500
IE
493,588 597,682
5,929 (277,770)
- 501,155 295,099
IE 28,008 10,000
DMS
19,120
UK

540,000 115,000

1,567,430
210,894 20,015
9,681 3,857
651,865 719,388
13,724,520 9,055,914

2020 12 31 2019 12 31

52,950 46,655

10,185
63,135 46,655
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2020 12 31 2019 12 31
55,419 466,890
(202,363) (2,874)
(146,944) 464,016
430,514 3,660,444

125 53,814 457,555
1,605 9,335
(202,363) (2,874)
(146,944) 464,016
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
32 27
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
3,328,198 2,808,197
351,380 265,892
256,001 212,192
. 52,422
80,021 70,136
50,003 488,981
4118115 3,845,398
52,422
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
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494,140 582,090
293,021 774,050
41,579 91,723
43,500 60,137
38,376 54,146

- 39,288
13,750 20,683
963,654 1,582,829

39,288 2019
2020 12 31 125,165
2019 145,346

2020 12 31 2019 12 31
11,570 11,570
11,570 11,570
10,919 7,062
651 3,857
11,570 10,919

651
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2020 12 31 2019 12 31

401,932
401,932

9,030
9,030
392,902

80,386
312,516
392,902

332,385 2019
2020 69,547 2019

IFRS 15

2020 12 31 2019 12 31

2,572,115 2,199,775

70,017
VAT 7,165 6,958
3,964,698 4,805,500

60,724

10 80,386
6,755,105 7,012,233

10 312,516
312,516

2020 12 31 2019 12 31
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Baa3
13.
14.
141
100,000,000
4,490,000
4,490,000
2020
2020 12 31
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5,654,703 4,071,239
5,654,703 4,071,239

Baa2 2019
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
148,051 51,023
3,709,716 2,720,186
238,321 622,072
373,524
136,719 107,660
8,483 6,082
4,241,290 3,880,547
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
100,000,000 100,000,000
4,490,000 3,790,000
4,490,000 3,790,000

IE
700,000 ( 700,000 )

2019 12 31
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100

493,588 2019 597,682

(277,770 )

28,008 2019 10,000
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2020 12 31 2019 12 31
3,413,576 217,148
577,458 3,196,428
3,991,034 3,413,576

IE 2008
2008
2018
IE

5,021,460 2019 3,098,500

IE

AML 5,929 2019

501,155 2019 295,099

IE
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233,712

16.

17.

19.
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19,120 2019
IE
540,000 2019 115,000
1,567,430 2019
70,017 2019
440 2019 164,787
44,510 2019 77,351
IE 148,385 2019
IE 11,582 2019 10,000
UK 33,404 2019
UK 2019 119,175
USA 2019 17,047
13
2020 2019 12 31
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CBI

CBI EU

2013/36/EU (EVU) 575/2013

3,969,703 2019 3,155,729

2020 4,664,929
2019 4,002,786

20.

15,000 2019

2020 12 31
2,572,115 2019 2,199,775 2020 12 31
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2019

679,890
1,244,979
164,927
109,979

2,199,775

2020

0 30 1,098,230

30 60 780,129

60 90 548,136

90 145,620

2,572,115
21,

2021 DMS
22.
23.

2021 15

60
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Waystone Management Company (IE) Limited
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

as at 31 Decembar 2020

31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2018
Hates € €
Non-Current Assets
Fintures, fittings and equipment 9 - 651
Trade and other receivables 10,11 312,516
Current Assels
Trade and other receivables 1 6,755,105 7.012.233
Cash and cazh equivalents 12 5,654,703 4071239
12,409,808 11,083,472
Total Assets 12,722,324 11,084,123
—
Enquity and Liabilities
Equity attributable to owners of the company
Called up share capstal 14 4,480,000 3,790,000
Retained samings 14 3,991,034 3413576
Total Equity 2.481,034 7,203,576
Trade payahles 13 4,241,200 3,880,547
Total Equity and Liabilities 12,722,324 11,084,123

Approved by the Board of Directors and signed on its behall by:

(': ,Mﬂaf;;— y :,;:._&t.h- D Lo nclt

Tim Madigan Caolmhghin O' Donnell
Director Director
pats: 15/ 2021 Date: 4/15/2021
The notes on pages 16 fo 32 form part of these fnancial stalements 13
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Waystone Management Company (IE) Limited
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE

INCOME
for the financial year ended 31 Decembar 2020

Financial Year Financial Year

Ended Ended
M Dec 2020 31 Dec 2018
L 4 €
Notes
Revenue 3 21,285,238 19503,124
Cost of sales 4 (7. 108.226) (8, 770,077)
Gross profit 14,177,012 12733, 047
Administrative expenses 5 (12.724,5200 (9,055,914
Operating profit 452 452 38677133
Interest receivablef{payable) and similar
income/charges (21,5978 {16,685)
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 430514 3660 444
Tax on profit on ordinary activities 6 146 944 (464 016)
Profit Tor the financial year 577,458 3196428
Financlal Year Financial ¥ear
Ended Ended
3 Dec 2020 3 Dec 2018
€ €
Statement of Profit or Loss and Other
Comprehensive Income
Profit for the fnancial year 577458 3196428
Total Profit or Loss and Cther Comprehensive
Income for the financial vear 577458 3196 428
All amounts relate to centinuing operations.
The notes on pages 16 1o 32 fom part of these financial statements 12
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Waystone Management Company (IE) Limited
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

for the financial year ended 31 December 2020

Balance at 1 January 2020

Total Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income for the
financial year

Prafit for the financal year

Transactions with Owners, recorded directly in Equity
Issue of ardinary shares

Balance at 31 December 2020

Balance at 1 January 2019

Total Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income for the
financial year
Profit for the financial year

Transactions with Owners, recorded directly in Equity

Izzue of erdinary shares

Balance at 31 December 2019

EDINETOOOO
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The notes on pages 16 o 32 lomn paet of thess fmancial statements
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Share  Retained Total
capital  eamings
& [ €
3,790,000 3,413,576 7,203,576
- 5TTASE 577 ASE
700,000 700,000
4,490,000 3,991,034 2481034
2,990,000 217,148 3207 148
3186428 3156428
800,000 5 800,000
3,790,000 3413576  T,203,576
14
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Waystone Management Company (IE) Limited
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

for the financial year ended 31 December 2020

3 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2019

Hotes £ €
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit fior the Enancial year 577458 3186428
Adiustments for:
Interast receivable/payable and similar income 21,978 16,689
Tax on profit on ordinary activities ] {146,944) 464 016
Depreciation and amortisation 5 9,681 3,857

462173 16808950
Moverments inworking caplal

Movernent in receivables 11 J98,238  (2,751,216)
Movermnent in payables 13 To2807 {408, 812)
Cash generated Fomiused in) operations 1,563,218 515,852
Tax paid (255,844) {178,512
Met cash generated from operating activities 1,307,374 340350

Cash fMows from Investing activities
Deferred confract costs 10 (401,933

Met cash used in investment activities (401,932

Cash Mows from financing activities

Interest payable {21,978 (16, 685

Issue of aquity share capital 14 700,000 800000

Met cash generated fromf{used in) financing activibes G, 022 TE3. 311

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 1,583,464 1,123,661

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of financial

year 4,071,239 2547578

Cash and cash equivalents at end of financlal year 12 5,654,703 4,071,239
I

The notes on pages 16 1o 32 fom part of these financial statements 15
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Waystone Management Company (IE) Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the financial year ended 31 December 2020

1. Repaorting entity

Waystone Management Company (IE) Limited {or the “Company”) is a Company limited by shares incorporated
and domicled in the Republic of reland, The company is tax resident in lreland. The address of its registered
office is 3rd Floor, 76 Lower Bagget Street, Dublin 2. The Company was formerly known as DMS Investment
Management Services [ Europe) Limited, and changed its legal name post financial year end.

2 Accounting policies

These Enancial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reperting Standards
a5 adopted by the European Union (or TFRE").

The significant accounting policies adopted by the Company are applied consistently in the preparation of these
financial statements are set out bedow.

21 Basls of preparation

The financial statements are prepared on the going concern basis, under the historical cost convention except
az modified by the accounting policies below, and comply with Irish Statute comprising the Companies Act
2014 (as amended).

The Board of Directors (or the “Directors™) are satisfed with the performance of the business duringthe financial
year, Az a result of the ongoing activity, the Directors are satisfied that it is appropriate to prepare the financial
statements on a going concern basis.

The Directors have assessed the performance of this entity and are satisfed that there is a reasonable
expectation that it will continue to be profitable for the foreseeable future.

22 Functional and presentation cumency

The financial statements are presented in Euro, denoted by the symbal €, which is also the functional curmancy
ofthe Company,

Foreign currency transactions during the financial year have been transiated at the rate of exchange using a
daily transaction rate generated in the accounting software. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
currencies other than Euro are translated at the exchange rates ruling at the Statement of Financial Position
date. The resulting profits or losses are dealt with in the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive
Income. Mon-monetary assets and liabilities are transzlated at historic rates.

23 Basic financial instruments
i} Trade and other recenables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value and thereaker stated at amortised cost using
the effective interest method less impament losses for bad and doubtful debts except where the effect of
dizcounting would be immateral. In such cases the recenablez are stated at cost less impairment losses for
bad and doubtful debts.

(i) Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are not interest bearing and are stated at their nominal value, These amounts
represent Babifiies for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of Bnancial year which are
unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of recognition. Trade and olher
payables are presentad as curent liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the Staterment of
Fingneial Pesition date,
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Waystone Management Company (IE) Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the financial year ended 31 December 2020

Z Accounting policies (continued)
23  Baslc financial instruments {continued)
(i) IFRS & Financial Instruments

IFRS & Financial Instruments has been adopled by the Company in the preparation of the 2020 financial
statements, in line with the requirements of IFRS.

Initial Recogmtion and Mea surement

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise o a inancial asset of one entity and a financial liability or
equity instument of another entity.

Financial assets and financial liabilites are initally measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directy
aftributable to the acquisition or issue of fnancial assets and fnancial kabilities (other than Bnancial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value ofthe financial
assets or financial liabilites, as approprate, on inifal recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisiion of Bnancial assets or inancial habilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately
in profit or loss.

Financial Azsets — Classification and Subsequent Mea surement

Financial assets are classified at inital recognition, and subsecuently measured as financial assets a
amortized cost, fair value through other comprehensive income or fair value through profit or loss on the basis
of both:

* The Company's business model for managing the finrancial assets; and

»  The contractual cash flow character stics of the financial asset.

Financial assets are nct reclassified subseguent to their initial recognition unless the Company changes its
business model for managing fnancial assets, in which case all affected financial assets are reclassified on the
first day of the first repodting period following the change in the business model,

Financial assets ane measured &t amortised cost when both af the fllowing conditions are met;
= The financial asset is held within a Business Model whose objective is to hold fnancial assats in order
to collect contractual eash flows; and
*  The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are Solely
Payments of Pnncipal and Interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if both of the following
conditions are mel:
+ the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial azzets; and
= the contractual terms of the financial azset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are sclely
payrments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,

All financial assets not cassified as measured at amortised cost or Fair Value through Other Comprehensive
Imcoma (or “FVOICI™) as described above are measured at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (or “FYTPL"). On
initial recognition, the Company may irmevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the
requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at FWOCH as at FPWTPL if doing so eliminates or significanthy
reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Financial assels — Business moded assessment:

The Company makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is held
because this best reflects the way the business is managed. and informaticn is provided to management,

The information considered includes:

= the stated policies and objectives and the operation of those policies in practice;

#  the risks that affect the perfarmance of the business madel (and the financial assets held within that
business model) and how those risks are managed;

*  how managers of the business are compensated — e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair
value of the assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and

« transiers of Gnancial assets to third parties in tranzactions that do not qualify for derecognition are not
considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the Company's continuing recognition of the asaots.

17

182/249



EDINETOOOO
OO000oOO00o0DO000Do00D00o0DO000DO0o0no(Ess?72)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Waystone Management Company (IE) Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the financial year ended 31 December 2020

Z Accounting policies (continued)
23  Baslc financial instruments {continued)
i) IFRS % Financial Instruments {continued)
Financial assets — Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest:

For the purposes of this asssssmant, ‘principal’ Iz definad as tha fair value of the financial asset on inifal
recognition, ‘Interest’ B defined as consideration for the ime value of money and for the credit risk associated
with the peincipal amount cutstanding during a particular pesiod of time and for other basic lending risks and
costs {e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin,

In assessng whether the contractual cash flows are sclely payments of principal and imterest, the Compary
considers the contractual terms of the instrument.

This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains a contractual tesrn that could change the timing
or amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this condtion.

In making this assessment, the Company considers:
# contingent events that would change the amount or iming of cash fows;
+ terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable-rate features, prepayment and
extension features; and
»  terms that limit the Compamy's claim to cash Bows from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse features).

A prepayment feature is consistent with the solely payments of principal and intarest criterion if the prepayment
amount substantially represents unpaid amounts of prncipal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,
which may indude reaszonable additional compensation fior early termination of the contract.

Additionally, for a financial asset acquired at a discount or premium to its contractual paramount, a feature that
permits or requires prepayment at an amcount that substantially represents the contractual par amount plus
accrued (but unpaid) contractual interest (which may also include reasonable additional compensation for early
termination) is treated as consistent with this criterion ifthe fair value of the prepayment feature is insignificant
at initial recognition.

Financial assels — Subsequenf measurement and gains and losses:
Financial as=zets at amortised cost are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
Fimancial fabities — Classificalion, subsequent meesurement and gains and losses;

Financial liabilites are classified as measured at amortised cost or FWTPL. A financial liability is classified as
at FVTPL ifit is classified as held-for-trading, it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition,
Financial liabiities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest
expense, are recognised in profit or loss, Other fnancial liabilities are subsequently measured at amonised
cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gaing and losses are
recogrised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in profit or loss.

The Company's finencial lizbilities incude due to related parties, client deposits, long-term loans and accruals
and accounts payable. These are measured at amortised cost, The Company considers the carrying value to
be a reasonable approximation of fair value.

Devecognition of financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash Bows from the financial
assel expire, oritiransfers the rights to receive the contractual cash fiows in a transaction in which substantially
all of the risks and rewards of cwnership of the fnancial asset are transferred or in which the Company neither
transfers nor retaing substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not retain control of the
financial assel.

The Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recegnised in Statement of Financial Position
but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets. In these cases, the
transferred assets are not derecognised,
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Waystone Management Company (IE) Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the financial year ended 31 December 2020

Z Accounting policies (continued)

23  Baslc financial iInstruments {continued)

i) IFRS % Financial Instruments {continued)
Deracogniion of financial fabilties

The Company derecegnises a financial Bability when its contractual ebligations are discharged or cancelled or
expire. The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows of
the modifed liability are substantially diferent. in which case a new financial liability based on the modfied
terms is recognised at fair value,

On derecognition of a financial liability, the difference between the camying amount extinguished and the
consideration paid (including any non-cazh assets transferred or liabilities assumed) is recognised in profit or
loss.

Impairererdt of Financial Assels

The Company recognises loss allowances for expecied credit losses ("ECLs") on financial azsels measured al
amortised cost. The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal 1o lifetime ECLs, except for
financial assets for which cradt sk (i.e. the risk of default occcuming over the expected life of the financial
instrument] has not increased significantty since intial recognition, which are measured at 12-month ECLs.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantty since initial recognition
and when estimating ECLs, the Company considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant
and available without undue cost or effort,

This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company's historical
experence and informed credit assessment and including foreard looking information.

The Company assurmes that the credt risk on a fnancial asset has increazed significantly if it iz more than a
specified amount of days past due. The Group considers a financial azset to be in default when:
# the bomower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Group in full, without recourse by the Company
to actions such as realising security (if any is held);
# the financial asset is more than 365 days past due.

Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected kfe of a financial
Imstrunent.

12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result from default events that are possible within the 12 months
after the reperting date {or a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument is less than 12 months),

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period owver which the
Company i exposed to credt nigk,

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probakbility-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the present value of
all cash shortfalls {i.e. the diference between the cash flows due to the entity in accordance with the contract
and the cash fows that the Company expects to receive). ECLs are discounted at the effective interest rate of
the financial asset. Management has assessed that the Groups EAD (or "Exposura At Default™) is 100% for all
debit balances and 0% for all credit balances.

Credi-impaired financial assets

At each reporting date, the Company azsesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost are credt
impaired. A financial assel is 'cradil-impaired’ when one or mone events that have a detimental impact on the
estimated futwre cash flows of the financial asset have cccumed.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following cbservable data:
+  significant inancial dificulty of the borrower or issuer;
*  abreach of contract such as a default or being more than 180 days past due;
# the restructuring of a loan or advance that is out of the normal practice; or
» itis probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.
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Waystone Management Company (IE) Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the financial year ended 31 December 2020

Z Accounting policies (continued)
23  Baslc financial instrumenis {continued)
FPresertation of allowance for ECL in the Statement of Financial Position

Less allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount
afthe assets.

The Company utlises an ECL model internaity developed and updated by management. Inputs into the modeal
is based upon management's assassment of the probability of default and loss given defaull

Write-off

The gross camying amount of a financial asset is wrilten offwhen the Company has noreasonable expectations
of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof, For customers, the Company has a policy of
assessing all balances greater than 120 days. To date the Company has not had to record any related write
offs.

Non-financial insgruments

At each reporting date, the Company reviews the camrying amounts of itz non-financial assets to determine
whaethar there is any indication of impairment. if any such indication sdsts, then the asset's recoverabla amount
is estimated.

24 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the Statement of Cash Flow, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on
hand, deposits held at call with financial institdtions, other short-term, highly liquid irmvestments with oniginal
maturibes of three months or lass that are readly convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

25  Employee benefits
Dedined contribufion plans and afher long-term employee benefifs

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment beneft plan under which the Company pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity and has no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts.
Obligations for contributions to defined contribution pension plans are recognised as an expense in the
Staterment of Profit o Loss and Other Comprehensive Income m the Brancial year dunng which services are
rendered by employees,

16 Roevernue

Revenue consists of sat-up fees and management fees eamed in respect of the Campany acting as an AIFM,
General Pardner and UCITS Management Company o investment funds, Manager to unit tusts and
partnerships, bank interest and certain sundry income, which is recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss
and Cther Comprehensive Income in the fimancial year when it is eamed. Revenue is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the Companny, and the amount
afthe revenue can be reliably measured.

Management fees are calculated based on a percentage of a fund’s Net Asset Value ("NAV™), sublecl to a

minimum agraed fee. Where there is no final MAV available for a client fund, an estimate of the fee income is

calculated using the fund's minimum fee or using a previous period's calculation. This basls of Incoma
estimation is both reazonable and prudent.

Included in cost of sales are costs paid by the Company in respect of platform costs paid on behalf of client
funds. These costs of sales are recovered through the fees charged as per turnover in note 3 below.

Bank interest ncome or expense is recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss and Cther Comprehenisive
Income usng the effective imerest rate,

Professional senice feas

Professional services fees are recorded by reference to the penod of the service. Amounts eamed but not yet
billed are recorded as accrued incorme,
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Waystone Management Company (IE) Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the financial year ended 31 December 2020

Z Accounting policies (continued)
26  Revenue (continued)

The Company mostly earns fived annual fees or fxed rate fees linked to annual performance obligations or
transaction-based fees which are recognised when the service is offered. Management was nol required to
apphy other practical expedients for revenue recognition under IFRS 15,

Periormance obigations and revenue recogniion policies

Thess services are recognised over the financial year they are provided, The income is accrued until client
invoices are issued. Revenue billed but not yet considered eamed are recorded as deferred revenue.

7 Taxation

Curment tax, induding Irish corporation tax (et a rale of 12.5%) is provided on the Company’s texabse profits.
Currant tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the Bnancial year, using
tax rates enacted of substantively enacted at the Statement of Financial Position date, and any adjustment to

tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of al timing differences that have ocriginated but not reversed at the
Statement of Financial Position date, Provision iz made at the ratez expected to apply when the timing
differences revarsa. Timing diferances ame differences between the Company's twable profits and s resulls
as statedin the inancial statements that arise from the inclusion of gainz andlosses in taxable profits in periods
different from those in which they are expectead to apply in the years in which the tming differences are expected
to reverse based on tax rates and lews that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the Statement of
Financial Fesition date, Deferred tax is not discounted.

A deferred tax asset is regarded as recoverable and therefore recognised only when, on the basis of all
avadable evidence, & can be regarded as more likely than not that there will be suftable taxable profits from
which the future reversal of the underlying timing differences can be deducted.

28  Expenses

Expenses are recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive lncome as incurred and
are accounted for on an accruals bawss.

29 Deferred contract costs

In ke with the requirements of IFRS 156 Revenue fom Contracts with Custorners, incremental recoverable
expenses relating to contracts with customers are capitalised and amodised over the expected Efe of the
confract when these expenses are expected to be recovered. Management estimate the expected life of the
contract. The Directors hawve estimated that 5 years is an appropriate period of amortisation {expensed as
incwrred in the prior financial year). Where certain contracts have a definite wseful life, the incremental costs
have been amarbsed over the appropriate life of the contract.

210  Tangible fixed assets and depreciation

Tangible fxed assels are stated at cost or at fair valuation, less accumulated depreciation, The charge to
depreciation is calculated to write off the orignal cost or fair valuation of tangible fixed assets, less their
estimated residual value, over their expected useful Bves as follows:

Fidures, ftings and equipment: 12.5% straight line.

The carrying values of tangible fized assets are reviewed annually for impairment in periods if events or
changes in circumstances indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable,

211 Impaliments of assets, other than financial instruments, stocks and work In progress

At the end of each financial year, the Company conducts an impairment review of all itz assalz and assesses
whether there is any indication that the recoverable amount of an asset is less than its carrying amount, If any
such indication edsts, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount, resulting in an
impairment loss. Impairment losses are recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit or Less and Other
Comprehensive Income,
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Waystone Management Company (IE) Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the financial year ended 31 December 2020

Z Accounting policies (continued)
211 Impalments of assets, other than financial Instruments, stocks and work in progress (continued)

Where the circumstances causing an impaiment of an asset, other than geodwill, no longer apply, then the
impairment is reversed through the Satement of Proft or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

The recoverable amount of tangible fixed assets, goodwill and other intangible fixed assets is the higher of the
fair value less cost to sell, of the asset and its value in use. The value in use of these assets is the present
value ofthe cash flows expected to be derived from those assets. This is determined by reference to the present
value of the future cash Bows of the Company which is considered by the Directors to be a single cash
generating unit.

212 Provisions, contingent labilities and assets

IFthe Company has provided for a provision or contingent liability or asset. Management estinmate the fair value,
using the infeemation made available to them, and probable expected cash flow advised to them by consulted
professionals

213 Share-based employee remuneration
The Company operates equity-setled share-based remuneration plans for its employees. All goods and
services receivad in exchange for the grant of any share-based payment are measured at thelr fair values.

All goods and services received in exchange for the grant of any share-based payment are measured at their
fair values.

Where employees are rewarded using share-based payments, the falr value of employees’ services is
determined indirectly by reference to the fair value ofthe eguity instruments granted. This fairvalue is appraised
at the grant date and excludes the impact of non-rmarket vesbng condiions.

214 Critical accounting judgements and Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The preparation of the financial statements in accordance with IFRS requires management to make estimates
and assumpbons that effect the reported amounts of assets and Babdities and the disclosure of contingent
assets and liabiities at the date of the financial statements and the reported ameunts of income and expense
during the financial year. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

There were no significant areas of uncertainty or judgement in applying accounting policies other than those
disclosed in the accounting policies above.

215 New standards effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020

The following standards, amendmants and interpretations has not had a significant impact on the Company's
financial staternents:

Amendments to IFRS 3; Definition of a Business,

Amendments to |1AS 1 and LAS B: Definiion of Matenal,

Amendments to IFRS 8, LAS 38 and IFRS 7: Interest Rate Benchmark Reform,

Various Standards: Amendments to Reference to the Conceptual Framework,

Amendments to IFRS 16: COVID-19 Rent Related Concessions.

LI

216 Standards, amendments and Interpretations to existing Standards that are not yet effective and have
not been adopted earty by the Company

The following upcoming new or amended standards are not expected to have a significant impact on the
Company's financial statements or are not yet effactive:
= |FRS 17: Insurance contracts,
Amendments to IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (Amendments to FRS 17 and IFRS 4),
References to Conceptual Framework,
Amendments to |1AS 16: Proceeds before Intended Use,
Amendments to |1AS 37: Onerous Confracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract,
Amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 8, IFRS 16, 1AS 41: Annual Improvements to IFR.S Standards 2018-
2020 Cycle,
*  Amendments to 1AS 1: Classification of Liabilities as Current and Mon-current.
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Waystone Management Company (IE) Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the financial year ended 31 December 2020

Z Accounting policies (continued)

216 Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing Standards that are not yet effective and have
not been adopled early by the Company (continued)

Al the date of authorisation ofthese fnancial statements, eleven new, but net yet effective, Jandards and
amendments to existing Standards, and Interpretations have been published by the LASE. None ofthese
Standards or amendments to existing Standards have been adopted early by the Company.

Management anticipates that all relevant pronouncements will be adopted for the first pericd beginning on or
afer the effective date of the proncuncement. New Standards, amendments and Interpretations not adopted
in the current Bnancial year have not bean disclosed as they are not expected to have a materal impact on the
Company's financial stalements,

3 Revenue
The investment management fees for the financial
year has been derved from:

Year Ended Year Ended
31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2019
€ €
Management and related fees 21,285,238 18,503,124
21,285,238 18,503,124

The Company is authonsed and regulated as an AIFM and UCITS Management Company to investment fnds,
manager to unit trust and partnerships and provides portfolio managernent, risk management and other activities.
Turnover comprises set-up fees and management fees. Management fees are calculated based on a percentage
of a fund's Ne! Asse! Value ("NAV™), subject lo a minimum agreed fee.

Geographical Market 2020 2019
€ €

Republic of Ireland 18,090,385 17,536,853
Luxembourg 3,093,626 1.966 465
Spain 101,226 i
21,285,238 19,503,124

Geographical splitis by fund domicibe.

4. Cost of sales
31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2019

€ 3

Audit and accounting fees for the Funds managed by Waystone
Management Company (IE} Limited 1,056,450 1.042 314

Directors’ faas for the Funds managed by Warystone

Management Company (IE) Limited 344 B35 329,765
Cthver coxt of sales 5,706,841 5,387,598
7,108,226 BIT00TT
e

Cther Cost of sales constitutes costs paid by the Company in respect of the Waystone Platforms it manages
as well as certain client funds. These costs of sales are recovered through the fees charged as per tumover
in mote 3 above,
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Waystone Management Company (IE) Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the financial year ended 31 December 2020

5. Administrative expenses 31 Dec 2020 3 Dec 2019
€ €

Statutory auditons” remuneration 63,135 45,655
Directors’ fees 484 140 582,080

S2aff costs (note T} 4,118,115 3845508

Company secretarial services, risk management
services and operational support provided by
Warystone Centralised Services (IE) Limited 5,021 460 3,098,500
Retained Investment Management services

provided by Waystone Asset Management (IE)

Limited 493,588 o097 682
Intercompany from Waystene Governance Cayman
Led

5929 (277,770}

Office running expenses (Waystone {Ireland)
Lirmited recharge”) 501,185 285,008
Intercompary from Waystone Corporate Services
{IE} Lirnited 28,008 10,000
Intercompary from DMS Bank and Trust Ltd 19120 .
Business Development recharge from Waystone
Governance {UK) Limited 540,000 115,000
Management Fee recharge fom Cashel Compliance
Bideo Ltd 1.567 430 .
Legal and professional fees 210,894 2005
Depreciation 8,681 3,857
Cther expenses 651,855 715,388

13,724 520 9,055 914

“Waystone {lrelandj Limited recharge consists of a proportionate charge to the Company for Rent, rates,
service charges, cleaning and cther staff costs.

Statutory auditors” remunaration 31 Dec 2020 3 Dec 2019
€ €
Statutory audit fee 52,850 45,655
Tax advisory fee 10,185 -
Cther non-audit services -
63,135 48 655
6. Taxation on ordinary activities
(&) Anabysiz of charge in the financial year 31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2018
€ €
Current tax expense
Corporation tax on profit on ordinary activities 55415 455 830
Underi ovar provision in prior financial year (202,363) {2,874)
Total corporation tax expense {146,844 464016
24
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the financial year ended 31 December 2020

B. Taxation on ordinary activities (continued)

{b} Reconciliabon of current tax charge based on applyng the standard rate of tax to the loss per the
financial statements and the current tax charge reported in the financial statements,

Current tax reconciliation
Profit on ordinary activities bafore tax

Current fax at 12.5%

Effects of:
Luxembourg Wealth Taxation
Underi{cver provision in prior financial year

Current corporation tax expense

7. Employees and remurneration

Number of employees

430,514 3,560,544
53,814 457 555
1,605 9,335
(202,363) {2,874)
(146,944) 484,016

The average number of persons employed (including executive directors) during the financial year was as

follows:;

Management and staff

The staff costs (inclusive of Directors' salaries)
comprise

Wages and salaries
Social welfare costs
Ponsion costs

Share based paymants”
Other staff benefits
Cther staff costs

31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2019
Number Mumber

a2 27

ear Ended Year Ended
31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2018
3.328188 2808197
351,380 265,882
256,081 212192
52422 .
80,021 70,138
50,003 488,581
4,118,115 3845308

“Share based payments were made to two directors and one employee during the fnancial year totalling
€52422 (2018 Nonep, The Directors and employee received shares in the Company’s ulimale parent
company Cashel Compliance Topco Lmied. Thess staff costs were then recharged to Cashel Compliance

Topco Limited,
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Waystone Management Company (IE) Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the financial year ended 31 December 2020

8. Directors’ remuneration 31 Dec2020 31 Dec 2018
€ €

Diractors” foas 494,140 582,090
Directors’ salares 293,021 774,050
Social welfare costs 41,578 81,723
Pension costs 4.3 500 B0, 137
Cammissions 38,376 54, 145
Share bazsed payments"* 38,288 -
Medical and other benefits 13,750 20,683
963, 654 1,582 829

EE— k- -— —3

**Share based payments were made to two directors during the financial year tolaling €39,288 (2019 None).
Thi Direclons reoaived shanes in the Company’s ulimate parent company Cashel Compliance Topoo Limited.
This cost was then recharged to Cashel Compliance Topeo Linvted.

Remuneration of Direclors is disclesed above. Other than noted above, no expenses. share options or other
remuneration was paid or awarded to the Direclors during the financial year, The amounts outstanding to
Cirectors a8 at 31 Dacarnbar 2020 was €125, 165 (2019: €145 346)

9. Fixtures, fittings and equipment
31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2015

Cost € L
Opening balance 11,570 11,570
Additions - =
Closing balance 11,570 1,570
Depreciation
Oipening Balance 10,918 7,082
Charge for the financial year 651 3BSV
Clasing balance 11,570 10,919
Met book value - g51
26
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Waystone Management Company (IE) Limited
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the financial year ended 31 December 2020

10. Deferred contract costs asset

31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2015

€ €

Cost
Opening balance - .
Additions 401,932 -
Closing balance 401,932 -
Amaortisation
Opening balance -
Charge for inancial year 9,030
Clomng balance 9,030
MNet Book Value 392,902

—————— —_—

The split of the total deferred contract costs splt between cumrent and non-cument is shown below:

Current 80,386
Men-cumrant 32,516
Total 382,902

E—

The deferred contract costs asszet relates to capitaizsed commissions paid to business development staff
amounting to €332 385 (2019; Nil) and defermed set-up costs paid for a new fund launched in 2020 managed by
the Company amounting lo €69,547 (2015: Nil),

In accordance with IFRS 15, sales commission costs are capitaksed and amontised oves the expacted life of the
fund which the sales contract is relates to. The amortisation period is S years, which the Directors believe to be
a best estmate of the life of the contract based on asset management industry average fund life. This is a change
from the prior financial year estimate where commission costs were expensed as incurred.

Deferred set-up costs relate to fund set-up costs incurred by the Company i relation to the establishment of
fund for a dient during the financial year. These set-up costs are being amortised over a 5 year period.

11. Trade receivables 31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2015
€ €
Cinrent
Trade and other receivables 2572115 2188 775
Amounts owed from Company companies 70,017 -
WAT recoverable 7,185 6,858
Prepayments and accrued income 3,964 658 4,805,500
Corporation tax receivable 60,724 -
Deferred contract costs (See note 10) 80,386
6,755,105 7012233
g 3
€ €
MNon-current
Deferred contract costs (See note 10) 312,516 =
Tobal non-curent rade receivables 32,616
7
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Waystone Management Company (IE) Limited
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the financial year ended 31 December 2020

12, Cash and cash equivalents 31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2019
€ €

Cash held at AlB 5,654,703 4,071,238
5,654,703 4,071,238

At 31 December 2020, AIB had a credit rating of Baa2, as determined by Moody's {2015: Baa3).

13. Trade Payables 31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2018
€ €

Amounts falling due within one year
Trade payables 148,051 51,023
Accruals and prepaid income 3708716 2 720,186
Amounts owed to Group companies 238,321 622072
Corporation tax payable - I7A524
PAYE payable 136719 107,660
(ther taxes due 8483 5,082
4,241,280 3880547

Armounts owed to Company undertakings are interest free, unsecured and payable on demand.

14. Share Capital and Reserves

14.1 Called up share capital - equity

-

I Dec 2020 31 Dec 2019
€ €

Authorised

100,000,000 erdinary shares of €1 each 100,000,000 100,000,000
Allotted

4,490,000 ordinary shares of €1 each 4,480,000 3,790,000

Called up and paid
4,480,000 ordinary shares of €1 each 4,450,000 3,790,000

The ordinary shares are presented as share capial in the financial staterments.

I January 2020 Waystone ( Ireland) Limited the immediate parent of Warystone Management Company (|E} Limited
Invested a further €700,000 (700,000 ordinary sharss of €1 sach) In tha Company.

Mo Director had an interest in the share capital of the Company at any time during the fnancial year ended 31
December 2020 or the financial year ended 31 December 2019,

28
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Waystone Management Company (IE) Limited
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the financial year ended 31 December 2020

14.2 Reserves
31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2018
€ €
Opening retained eamings 3,413,576 217,148
Profit for the financial year 577458 3185428
Clesing retained eamings 3,851,034 3,413,576

All ordinary shares rank equally. Holders of voting shares are entited to one vobe for each Ordinary share at general
meetings ofthe Group.

Share premium represents the excess price of the iszued shares over their par value.

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the entity's abllity to conlinue as a gaing
concern, =0 that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders.

Accumulated losses in equity includes all eurrent and prior financial year retained profits and losses.
15. Related party transactions and controlling party
Uittimate cortroliing parties

The immedate Parent Company to Waystone Management Company (IE) Limited is Waystone (Ireland) Limited,
which iz a company incorporated in 2008 in kreland, Waystone (Ireland) Limited holds 100% of the share capital of
the Company.

The smallast group in which the results of the Company are consolidated is that headed by Waystone (Ireland)
Limited, which is a company incorporated in 2008 in Ireland.

The largest group in which the results of the Company are consolidated is that headed by Cashel Compliance TopCe
Limited, which is a company incorporatedin 2018 in Ireland.

Transactions with group companies

Included in note 5 are the following:

+ €5021 460 of expenses relates to company secretarial services, risk management services and operational
support provided by Waystone Centralised Services (|E) Limited (2019: €3,098,500),

«  €403.588 of mepenses relates to investment management services provided by Waysione Asset
Management (IE) Limited (2018: €597 682),
€5,929 of expenses relates to AML recharge from Waystone Governance Ltd (2019; (€277,770)),
€£3501.155 of expenses relates to recharge for rent, rates, service charges, cleaning and other staff cost
provided by Waystone (Ireland) Limfted (2018; €285,083),

« €28,008 of expenzes relatez to business development recharge by Waystone Corporate Services (IE)
Limnited {201%9: €10,000),

= €18,120 of expenses relates to recharge for services to support one of the clients of the company by DMS
Bank and Trust Ltd (2019: nil),

= €540.000 of expenses relates to recharge for services to support one of the clients of the company by
Waystone Carporate Senices (IE) Lirmited (2019: €115,000),

= €1567,430 of expenses relates to recharge for management services and other charges provided by
Cashel Compliance Bidco Limited (2019; nil).

Included in note 11 is the following balance owed by group company:
+  Waystone Management Cempany (Lux) 5.A. of €70,017 (2019: ail).

29
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Waystone Management Company (IE) Limited
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the financial year ended 31 December 2020

15. Related party transactions and controlling party (continued)

Included in note 13 is the following balance owed to group companies:

Waystone Governance Limited of €440, (2018; €164, 787),

Waystone Imland Limited of €44,510 (2018: €77 .351),

Waystone Centralised Services (|E) Limited of €148 385 (2018 €233,712).
Waystone Corporate Services (IE) Limted of €11,582 (2018: €10, 000),
Wiaystone Management (UK) Limited of €33, 404 (2019: €ni).

Waystone Governance (U K) Limited of Enil (201%; €119,175)

Waystone Governance (USA) Inc of €nil (2019; €17,047)

Key management personnel compensation

The Directors' remuneration disclosed in nole B represenis the tolal compensation paid to key management
personnel.

Ofher related pary transachions

Direclors’ remuneration and lransacions are disclosed in note 8. Administrative expenses refating to services
provided by other Company companies are disclosed in note 5. Please also refer to nobe 13 for amounts payable to
group companies.

16. Financial commitments and obligations

The Directors are not aware of any material fnancial obligations entered into during the current financial year which
have not been adequately reflacted in the financial statements.

17. Indemnifications

I the normal cowrse of business, the Company enters into contracts that contain a vanisty of representations,
warrantias and abligations which provida ganaral indemnifications, The Company’s maximum axposura undear these
arrangements is unknown as this would involve future claims that may be made against the Company that have not
yet occumed. However, based on expenence, the Company expects the risk of loss to be remete and has
professional indemnity insurance in place to mitigate these risks. Liabilities incurred may or may not be covered by
the Company's professional indemnity insurance.

18. Contingent liability

The Company has regulatory, contractual and other duties and obligations arising in the ordinary course of its
busmess. In its capacity as Gonaral Parnor lo imeastment [imited partnarships ("Partnerships™), the Company is
liable for the debls and cbligations of the Pastnerships where the Partnerships have insufficient property to meet its
debts and obligations. These are in the nature of contingent liabikties. Such liabiliies may or may not be covered by
the 's profesaional indemnity insurance. As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, no provision has been made
in these financial statements for such contingent liabilites and such contingent liabiliies have been disclosed by way
of this note onaly.

19, Capital management

The Company is subject to externally imposed minimum capital requirements by the CBl and these are reviewed on
a quarterty basiz by the zenior management within the Company and the Board. The Company's regulaiory capital
requiremnents are considered in the budgeling process as per regulatery guidance.

The Campany's CBI minimum capial requirements ane a8 prescribed under the EL Capital Requirements Dinective
{Directive 2013/36/EL)) and Regulation (EUF) No 5752013 on prudential requirements for credit institutions and
investment fims (logether, the "Capital Requirements”). The Company is reguired o hold the minimum level of
capital as set out in legisiation at all imes and is required to submit capital returns to the Central Bank on a periodic
basis. For the purpose of this requirerment the capital required is cash on deposit. As at the end of the financial year
the Company's Cantral Bank minimum captial requiremant was €3, 989 703 (2019: €3,155,729).

The Company is meeting its objectives for managing capstal through helding cash on deposit above the minimum
capial requirernent, 2020 €4,664,920 (2018 €4,002,786)

30
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Waystone Management Company (IE) Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the financial year ended 31 December 2020

20. Financial risk management
Market risk

The Cempany does not hald any investments on its Statement of Financial Position and none of the Company's
curment assets are directly affected by financial markets. Consequently, the Company has no matersal market risk
level and no sensitivity analysis has been performed.

Foreign exchange fisk

The Company holds a significant amount of its net assets in Euro but has receivables and deposits in United States
{or US" Dollars. The foreign exchange risk on these US Dollar balances are kept to a mininum through regular
conversions and balancing heldings in Euro equivalent amounts. This serves to minimise the matedal foreign
exchange risks. Upon review, management have determined that there are no material receivable balances exposed
to foreign exchange risk at the financial year end and therefore no sensitivity analysis has been performed.

Interest rate risk

Movements in interest rates would not have any matedial impact on the results ofthe business due to the nature of
cash and related investrnents held, Therefore, no sensitivity analysis has been performed,

Credit risk

The Directors are satisfed that a bad debt provision is required in relation to trade recevables amounting to €15.000
(2018: Nil). This relates to bwo of the companies, from which it was confirmed the payments will not be received. At
any given tima, the Company is exposed to credit risk of the value of the trade receivables at that date. As at 31
Dacember 2020, total rade receivables were €2.572,115 (2018 €2,199.775). The aged analysis of frade receivables
at 31 December 2020 is as follows:

Ageing 2020 019
€ €

0 - 30 days 1,088,230 679,880
30-60 days 780,129 1,244 879
60— 50 days 548 136 164,927
90 + days 145,620 109,979

2572115 2,198,775

Licpuldity risk

The Company holds the majority of its net assets in cash, Consequently, the Company has no material liquidity risk,
Al creditors are due within 60 days, except for amounts owed to Company compames, which are payable on demand
and due within one financial year.

Concentration risk

In order to mitigate the concentration risk, the Company has a strong business development team who seek to
develop a diversified asset class and client base.

M. Post-Statement of Financial Position events

On 1 March 2021, the Company changed its legal name from DMS Investment Management Services (Europe)
Limted to Waystone Management Company {IE) Limited.

There have been no other adusting or non-adjusting events which require dizclosure in the financial statements of
the Company.

22, Reclassification of comparative fgures
Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified for consistency with the current year presentation. These

reclassifications had no effect on the reported results of cperations. The account balances which have been
rectassified are set out in note 4 and note 5 tothese financial statements.

Kl
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Waystone Management Company (IE} Limited
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the fnancial year ended 31 December 2020

23. Approval of financial statements

The audited financial statements were approved on the 15 Aprl 2021

32
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Brown Brothers Harriman Trustee Services Ireland Limited

2021 1,500,000 6,340
1995 29
IE
2021 503,118 6,641

2017

Brown Brothers Harriman Fund Administration Services Ireland Limited

2021 700,000 7,625
1995 29

2021 836 1,600

2021 875 5,000
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Independent Auditor's Report to the Unitholders of Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
For the period ended 31 December 2020

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust (or the “Trust”), which comprise
the Statement of Financia Position, Statement of Financial Position and the Statement of Investments as at
31 December 2020and the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the Statement of Changes in Equity for
the financia year then ended, and the related notes to the financia statements, including the summary of
significant accounting policies.

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the financial statementsisIrish
law and accounting standards issued by the Financial Reporting Council including FRS 102 “The Financial
Reporting Standard applicablein the UK and Republic of Ireland” (Generally Accepted Accounting Practice
in Ireland).

In our opinion, Trust's financial statements:

give atrue and fair view, in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Practice in Ireland, of the
assets, liabilities and financial position of the Trust as at 31 December 2020 and of its financia
performance for the financial year then ended; and

have been properly prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Unit Trust Act 1990.

Basisfor opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (Ireland) (or “1SAs
(Ireland)”) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Responsibilities of the auditor for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Trust in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statementsin Ireland, including the Ethical Standard for Auditors (Ireland) issued by the Irish
Auditing and Accounting Supervisory Authority (or “IAASA”), and the ethical pronouncements established
by Chartered Accountants Ireland, applied as determined to be appropriate in the circumstances for the Trust.
We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Manager’'s use of going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Trust’s ability to continue
as agoing concern for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are
authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the manager with respect to going concern are described in the
relevant sections of this report.
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Other information

Other information comprises information included in the annual report, other than the financial statements
and the Auditor’s report thereon, including the Investment Manager's Report, the Depositary’s Report and
the Appendix to the Financial Statements. The Manager is responsible for the other information. Our opinion
on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly
stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility isto read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we
identify such material inconsistenciesin the financial statements, we are required to determine whether there
isamaterial misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the financia statements

As explained more fully in the Managers responsibilities statement, management is responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements which give atrue and fair view in accordance with Generally
Accepted Accounting Practicein Ireland, including FRS 102, and for such internal control asthey determine
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
dueto fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Trust’s ability to continue
as agoing concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Trust or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Trust's financial reporting process.
Responsibilities of the auditor for the audit of the financial statements

The auditor’ s objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statementsasa
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes their opinion. Reasonable assurance isa high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with 1SAs (Ireland) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs (Ireland), the auditor will exercise professional judgment and

maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. The auditor will also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for their opinion. Therisk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Trust’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by Management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of Management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Trust's ability to continue as a going concern. If they
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, they are required to draw attention in the Auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify their
opinion. Their conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of the Auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Trust to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves atrue and fair view.

The auditor communicates with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that may be identified during the audit.

The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibilities

This report is made solely to the Trust's unitholders, as a body, in accordance with the agreed scope of our
engagement. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Trust’s unitholders those
matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Trust and the Trust’s
unitholders as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

John Glennon

For and on behalf of

Grant Thornton

Chartered Accountants & Statutory Audit Firm
13-18 City Quay

Dublin 2

Ireland

Date: 27 May 2021
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Independent auditor' s report to the members of Waystone Management Company (IE) Limited
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Waystone Management Company (IE) Limited (or the
“Company”), which comprise the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income, the
Statement of Financial Position, the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the
financial year ended 31 December, 2020, and the related notes to the financial statements, including the
summary of significant accounting policies.

Thefinancial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the financial statementsisIrish
law and International Financial Reporting Standards (or “1FRS") as adopted by the European Union.

In our opinion, the Company’s financia statements:

give atrue and fair view in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the European Union of the assets,
liahilities and financia position of the Company as at 31 December, 2020 and of its financial
performance and cash flows for the financial year then ended; and

have been properly prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2014.

Basisfor opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (Ireland) (or “1SAs
(Ireland)”) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Responsibilities of the auditor for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statementsin Ireland, including the Ethical Standard for Auditors (Ireland) issued by the Irish
Auditing and Accountancy Supervisory Authority (or “IAASA™), and the ethical pronouncements
established by Chartered Accountants Ireland, applied as determined to be appropriate in the circumstances
for the Company. We have fulfilled our other ethical responsihilitiesin accordance with these requirements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Board of Directors (or the "Directors") use
of going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statementsis appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events
or

conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue
as agoing concern for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are
authorised for issue.

Our responsihilities and the responsibilities of the Directors with respect to going concern are described in
the relevant sections of this report.
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Other information

Other information comprises information included in the annual report, other than the financial statements
and the Auditor’s report thereon, including the Directors' Report and the Directors Responsibility Statement.
The Directors are responsible for the other information. Our opinion on the financial statements does not
cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with our audit of the financial statements,
our responsibility isto read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financia statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If we identify such material inconsistencies in the financial statements, we are required to determine whether
there isamaterial misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other
information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Matters on which we are required to report by the Companies Act 2014

We have obtained all the information and explanations which we consider necessary for the purposes of
our audit.

In our opinion the accounting records of the Company were sufficient to permit the financial statements
to be readily and properly audited.

Thefinancia statements are in agreement with the accounting records.

In our opinion the information given in the Directors report is consistent with the financial statements.
Based solely on the work undertaken in the course of our audit, in our opinion, the Directors report has
been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2014.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

Based on our knowledge and understanding of the Company and its environment obtained in the course of
the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Directors report. Under the Companies Act
2014 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion, the disclosures of Directors remuneration and
transactions specified by sections 305 to 312 of the Act have not been made. We have no exceptions to
report arising from this responsibility.

Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the financia statements

Asexplained more fully in the Directors Responsibilities Statement, those charged with governance are
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements which give atrue and fair view in accordance with
IFRS as adopted by the European Union, and for such internal control as they determine necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, those charged with governance are responsible for assessing the
Company'’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company
or to cease operations, or has no redlistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
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Responsibilities of the auditor for the audit of the financial statements

The Auditor’ s objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statementsasa
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes their opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with | SAs (Ireland) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with |SAs (Ireland), the auditor will exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. The auditor will also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for their opinion. Therisk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by those charged with governance.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
they conclude that a material uncertainty exists, they are required to draw attention in the Auditor’'s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify their opinion. Their conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of the
Auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as
agoing concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves atrue and fair view.

The Auditor communicates with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficienciesin internal
control that may be identified during the audit.

The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibilities

Thisreport is made solely to the Company’s members, as abody, in accordance with section 391 of the
Companies Act 2014. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s
members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To
the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the
Company and the Company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we
have formed.
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John Glennon

For and on behalf of

Grant Thornton Chartered Accountants & Statutory Audit Firm
13-18 City, Quay, Dublin 2

Ireland

Date: 15 April 2021
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